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STREET ADDRESS: 1301 Park Street HISTORIC NAME ' Oak Lane
MAP & PARCEL: 46-1 DATE / PERIOD : 1890 and/or 1898, c. 1955
CENSUS TRACT AND BLOCK: g.204 STYLE : Victorian
PRESENT ZONING: R-2 HEIGHT (to cornice)OR STORIES. 2 stories
ORIGINAL OWNER: Ellie M. Elliott DIMENSIONS AND LAND AREA . 6.725 acres
ORIGINAL USE: Residence CONDITION  Good
PRESENT USE ! Rental Property (Residence) SURVEYOR | Bibb
PRESENT OWNER: Jane S. Coles, et al DATE OF SURVEY . Winter 1980
ADDRESS : ¢/o Roberts Coles SOURCES: City/County Records
Cloverfields Mrs. George M. Coles, Sr. {Jane S. Coles)
Keswick, Virginia

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

This rather handsome house has been significantly altered by the removal of all but the center portion of the
veranda that wrapped around three sides. The result is a more formal facade. Set on a high foundation of brick
laid in 5-course American bond, it is an L-shaped, 2-storey, 3-bay, white weatherboarded house with a 1-storey
addition filling in the ell. The medium-pitched hip roof is covered with slate and has Philadelphia gutters,
projecting eaves, and shaped rafter ends. There are two interior chimneys with corbeled caps and inset panels.
Hip-roofed dormers with slate walls are located on the facade, west side, and rear. Each contains a pair of attic
windows: double-sash, l-over-1 light on the facade, and casement windows on the side and rear with a band of small
lights at the top and bottom. The 2-storey entrance porch, which replaced a wide veranda in the mid-1950's, has a
steep gable roof covered with slate, with exposed rafter ends. It is supported by four square posts. It has a
projecting pseudo -pediment with modillions and applied moulding in a Gothic motif. There is a simple balustrade at
the first level and a weatherboarded one at the second. The first level of the veranda originally extended across
the facade and around both sides of the house, its flat slate roof forming an open deck at the second level.
Windows at the first level of the facade reach to the floor. They appear to be triple-sash, 1l-over-1 light, but the
two lower lights are actually on the same sash. There are l-over-1 light windows at the second level of the facade
and 2-over-2 light windows elsewhere. All have plain trim and louvered shutters. Wide central entrance doors at
both levels of the facade have five horizontal panels and are flanked by wide sidelights over panels extending to the
top of a horizontal transom. The one-storey addition that fills in the ell matches the main section in most details.
It has a nearly flat roof covered with standing-seam metal. There is a l-storey, l-bay enclosed back porch, added
in the 1950's on the site of the old kitchen wing. Interior trim is fluted with corner blocks. There are fireplaces
with Victorian mantels in every room. The house originally had a central hall with a two-flight open-well stair and
a stained glass window on the stair landing. To accommodate a modern kitchen and bathrooms at the rear of the
house, the hall has been partitioned and a smaller three-flight stair built in the remaining entrance hall.

HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION

Ellie M. Elliott, wife of John F. Elliott of Elliott Ice Co., purchased a 135-acre tract from the Cochran estate§
in 1889 (ACDB 93-187) and built a house there immediately. She sold all but ten acres to Belle B. Brown in 1898
(ACDB 111-431). Tax records indicate substantial improvements the same year, but it is unclear whether this was new
construction or additions to an existing building. Mary W. Randolph (Mrs. Wm. M. Randolph) bought the house and the
remaining ten acres in 1904 (ACIB 128-412), but moved to Arizona a few years later. Martin S. Stringfellow bought
it in 1919, and it has remained in his family (ACDB 169-303). It was deeded to his daughter and her husband, Judge
George M. Coles, in 1951 (ACDB 343-386). They remodeled it c. 1955, removing a rear wing, moving the staircase,
and replacing the veranda with a small two-storey entrance porch. Then two years later they moved into town when
Coles was appointed judge. The house has been used as rental property for over twenty years. Additional references:
ACDB 169-271, 242-329; City DB 329-1 through 18, 342-62, 358-544, 386-622, 404-387; City WB 20-424.

SIGNIFICANCE
.This is a fine example of a farmhouse in the Victorian style.
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ARSUITLOIURAL MELORIPTION
This rather handsone house hes besn significsntly altered by the reroval of

all but the centor portion of ihe verands that wrepped arcund three

all but the center portion of the vervanda that wrasped around three sides, The
result 12 a nmore formel facade, 3eb on a Bigh foundation of brick laid in 5=
ecourss izerican bend, it is en Leshaped, 2-storey, 3~bay, white wecatherboarded
house with 8 lestorey addition filliang in the eli, The mediumepitched hip roof
is covered wilh clate end hes prujeccinpreavesy Philadelphia gutters, andjebte
ing eeves, snd shaped rafter ends. There are twe interior chimmoys with corbeled
¢aps and inset pﬂncis. tip=rocfed dermere with elate wallis are located on the
facade, weet side, and rear. Esch containe e paly of ettic windows: deuble-szash,
legver~l lighw on the fecede, and cascpent windows on the side and rear with &
band of €121l liphic at the top and bottem, ihe Zestorey entrence porch, which
repleceld o wide veranda in the mii-;?“c‘b, hus & steep geble roof coversd with
slete, with oxposed refter ends. 1% 1s supporited by four square poste, It hae

& projecsting psevod=pedinent with medillions end apgliea moulding in s dothic
notite There is o sinple balustrade at the first level and a weatherbearded cue
ut the sccond. The first level of ke verands originelly extended neross the
facade und ervound both sidee of the hougv, its fla’ snlate rosf Terming an open
doek &t the sezond lcvcl. “in;cws al the first ilevel of the faemde recch to the
©lcete They vppear to be tripice-sosh, leover«l iight, buvi the two lower lighte
are astuelly on the sane sash. There are leover-i 11 ght windows st the second
level of the facude and J-cver-g light windows elsewhere, 51l have plein Lrim
and louvered shutters, ¥ide central entrance doors at both levels of the facede
have five horizontal penels and wikd Flanked by wide sidelights over peanels
extending to the top of o horizontal transom. The one~3t0rey eddition that filis
in the el1l matches the uuin section in most detmile, It has a nearly flat roof
covarzd with standing-sesm metal, There is a l-storey, l-bay enclosed back porch,
added in the 1990's on the site ol the old kitehen wing,. Interior trim is Pluted
with oorner blecks. There are Jirepleces with Victorian mantels in every room,
Tho nouge originally had a sentrsl hail with 2 two«flight open-well stair and &
steined glass window on the stair landing. o acousodate a modern kitchen and
bathrooms ab the rear of the house, the hall hes bova partitioned ani a smallar
three={light stair builc in the remaining enirance hall,

HISTORICAL SUSlIRIPTION
Eillie M, Eliiotl, wife of John &, Ellictt of Zlliett ice Yo., purchazed a 175
acre trect from the Jochran estate in 1568 (ATID O7«l37) and built & house there
impedistoly. She sold all but ten acres to felle B. Brown in 1393 {aulD 1li-431),
Jax records indioete substuntisl inprovements the zame yenr, but it is unclear
whether this was new construction or additions to an sxisting building. Vary We
Randoivh {irs., ¥me M. Randolph) bougnt the houss and the rorais 1ing ten acres in
1504 {w U 123=412), but moved to Arizona a few years later, Hartin &, Stringe
fellow bough* ~ in 1919, and it has vemained in his Family (A'DB 1069=-303), It

was deeded * daughter and her husband, Judge George }. Joles, in 1971 {AQDB
33,3863, 7 deled it o, 1555, removing a vear wing, moving the steircese,
and replas rands with a small two-storey entrance porch, Then two years

later thr town when Coles was appointed judge. The house has been
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STREET ADDRESS : HISTORIC NAME : Oak Lane
MAP 8 PARCEL: 45-1301 R S DATE / PERIOD : 1890 and/or 1898, c. 1955
CENSUS TRACT AND BLOCK: g.704 STYLE : Victorian '
PRESENT ZONING: R-2 HEIGHT (to cornice)OR STORIES: 2 stories |
ORIGINAL OWNER: Ellie M. Elliott DIMENSIONS AND LAND AREA . 6.725 acres
ORIGINAL USE: Residence CONDITION | Good
PRESENT USE : Rental Property (Residence) SURVEYOR : Bibb
PRESENT OWNER : Jane S. Coles, et al DATE OF SURVEY: Winter 1980
ADDRESS . c/o Roberts Coles SOURCES: City/County Records
Cloverfields Mrs. George M. Coles, Sr. (Jane S. Coles)
Keswick, Virginia

o

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

This rather handsome house has been significantly altered by the removal of all but the center portion of the
veranda that wrapped around three sides. The result is a more formal facade. Set on a high foundation of brick
laid in 5-course American bond, it is an L-shaped, 2-storey, 3-bay, white weatherboarded house with a 1-storey
addition filling in the ell. The medium-pitched hip roof is covered with slate and has Philadelphia gutters,
projecting eaves, and shaped rafter ends. There are two interior chimneys with corbeled caps and inset panels.
Hip-roofed dormers with slate walls are located on the facade, west side, and rear. Each contains a pair of attic
windows: double-sash, 1-over-1 light on the facade, and casement windows on the side and rear with a band of small
lights at the top and bottom. The 2-storey entrance porch, which replaced a wide veranda in the mid-1950's, has a
steep gable roof covered with slate, with exposed rafter ends. It is supported by four square posts. It has a
projecting pseudo -pediment with modillions and applied moulding in a Gothic motif. There is a simple balustrade at
the first level and a weatherboarded one at the second. The first level of the veranda originally extended across
the facade and around both sides of the house, its flat slate roof forming an open deck at the second level.
Windows at the first level of the facade reach to the floor. They appear to be triple-sash, l-over-1 light, but the
two lower lights are actually on the same sash. There are l-over-1 light windows at the second level of the facade
and 2-over-2 light windows elsewhere. A1l have plain trim and louvered shutters. Wide central entrance doors at
both levels of the facade have five horizontal panels and are flanked by wide sidelights over panels extending to the
top of a horizontal transom. The one-storey addition that fills in the ell matches the main section in most details.
It has a nearly flat roof covered with standing-seam metal. There is a 1-storey, l-bay enclosed back porch, added
in the 1950's on the site of the old kitchen wing. Interior trim is fluted with corner blocks. There are fireplaces
with Victorian mantels in every room. The house originally had a central hall with a two-flight open-well stair and
a stained glass window on the stair landing. To accommodate a modern kitchen and bathrooms at the rear of the
house, the hall has been partitioned and a smaller three- flight stair built in the remaining entrance hall.

HISTORICAL TESCRIPTION

Ellie M. Elliott, wife of John F. Elliott of Elliott Ice Co., purchased a 135-acre tract from the Cochran estate
in 1889 (ACDB 93-187) and built a house there immediately. She sold all but ten acres to Belle B. Brown in 1898
(ACDB 111-431). Tax records indicate substantial improvements the same year, but it is unclear whether this was new
construction or additions to an existing building. Mary W. Randolph (Mrs. Wm. M. Randolph) bought the house and the
remaining ten acres in 1904 (ACIB 128-412), but moved to Arizona a few years later. Martin S. Stringfellow bought
it in 1919, and it has remained in his family (ACIB 169-303). It was deeded to his daughter and her husband, Judge
George M. Coles, in 1951 (ACDB 343-386). They remodeled it c. 1955, removing a rear wing, moving the staircase,
and replacing the veranda with a small two-storey entrance porch. Then two years later they moved into town when
Coles was appointed judge. The house has been used as rental property for over twenty years. Additional references:
ACDB 169-271, 242-329; City DB 329-1 through 18, 342-62, 358-544, 386-622, 404-387; City WB 20-424.

SIGNIFICANCE
This is a fine example of a farmhouse in the Victorian style.
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